



**BYLAWS
OF THE ORGANIZATION**

Contents

ARTICLE I -- NAME

ARTICLE II -- PURPOSE

ARTICLE III -- MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1 - CATEGORIES OF MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 2 -- ELIGIBILITY

SECTION 3 - VOTING RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 4 -- TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 5 -- TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 6 -- MEMBER SECTIONS

SECTION 7 -- LIABILITIES OF MEMBERS

SECTION 8 -- VETO POWERS

ARTICLE IV -- MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION 1 -- ANNUAL MEETINGS

SECTION 2 -- SPECIAL MEETINGS

SECTION 3 -- MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION 4 -- VOTING

SECTION 5 -- QUORUM

ARTICLE V -- ELECTRONIC REFERENDUM

ARTICLE VI -- BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1 -- NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 2 -- COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 3 -- POWERS

SECTION 4 -- DUTIES

SECTION 5 -- TERMS OF OFFICE

SECTION 6 - QUALIFICATIONS

SECTION 7 - NOMINATIONS & ELECTIONS

SECTION 8 - VACANCIES

SECTION 9 - MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS & NOTICE OF MEETINGS

SECTION 10 - QUORUM

ARTICLE VII -- EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SECTION 1 - COMPOSITION

SECTION 2 - RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 3 - AUTHORITY

SECTION 4 - QUORUM

SECTION 5 - ALTERNATIVE MEETING METHODS

ARTICLE VIII -- COMMITTEES

ARTICLE IX -- ADVISORY COUNCIL

ARTICLE X -- EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS

SECTION 1 - EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS

SECTION 2 - PROMISSORY NOTES

SECTION 3 - INDEBTEDNESS

SECTION 4 - DEPOSITS

SECTION 5 - GIFTS

ARTICLE XI-- INSPECTION RIGHTS AND CORPORATE SEAL

ARTICLE XII -- FISCAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATION

ARTICLE XIII -- FEES, DUES AND ASSESSMENTS

ARTICLE XIV -- AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

ARTICLE XV - PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

ARTICLE XVI -- NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

ARTICLE XVII -- DISSOLUTION OF THE CORPORATION

Article I -- NAME

The name of the organization shall be the Florida Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf, Inc. (FRID), hereinafter referred to as the Corporation.

Article II -- PURPOSE

The Corporation strives to advocate for best practices in interpreting, provide professional development for practitioners, and promote the highest standards in the provision of interpreting services for diverse users of languages that are signed or spoken.

Article III -- MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 - Categories of Membership

This Corporation shall have the following categories of membership:

A. Voting Members

1. RID Member: Any individual who is an active member in good standing of the Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf, Inc. (RID) would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.
2. Senior Citizen RID Member: Any individual who is an active member in good standing of the RID and who is aged 55 or older would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.
3. Student RID Member: Any individual who is an active member in good standing of the RID and who is currently enrolled in an Interpreter Training Program (ITP) at a college or university would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.

B. Non-Voting Members

1. Non-RID Member: Any individual with an interest in supporting the purposes and

- activities of the Corporation, but who is not an active member in good standing of the RID would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.
2. Senior Citizen Non-RID Member: Any individual who is aged 55 or older, but who is not an active member in good standing of the RID would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.
 3. Student Non-RID Member: Any individual who is currently enrolled in an ITP at a college or university, but who is not an active member in good standing of the RID would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.
 4. Organizational Member: Any organization or institution with an interest in supporting the purposes and activities of the Corporation would qualify as a member of the Corporation in this category.

Section 2 – Eligibility

A member will be considered to be in good standing if dues and debts have been paid to the Corporation. Membership shall be terminated if dues have not been paid by the due date.

Section 3 - Voting Rights and Requirements

- A. In order to be a voting member of the Corporation, a person must be a member in good standing and belong to a voting category.
- B. Each voting member of this Corporation shall be entitled to one vote in local meetings, referenda, and elections.

Section 4 -- Termination of Membership

Upon termination of membership, all rights and privileges immediately cease. There shall be no refund of dues or assessments. Membership in the Corporation can be terminated for the following reasons:

- A. Suspension or Expulsion for Cause: Any member whose membership is suspended or revoked for cause by the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall automatically be suspended or expelled from the Corporation until such time as membership can be reinstated.
- B. Non-payment of dues, by the due date, by a member in any category shall result in termination of membership.
- C. Resignation: Any member may resign before the expiration of their membership by filing a written notice with the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Such resignation renders membership invalid. Furthermore, such resignation shall not relieve the member of paying dues, assessments or other charges theretofore accrued and unpaid.

Section 5 -- Transfer of Membership

Membership in this Corporation is not transferable or assignable. All rights of membership cease at a member's death.

Section 6 -- Member Sections

This Corporation may establish Member Sections which shall be open to all members of the Corporation who meet requirements for membership as shall be defined, from time to time, by the Board of Directors and approved by the membership of the Corporation. All Member Sections must be self-sustaining.

Section 7 -- Liabilities of Members

No individual who is now or who later becomes a member of this Corporation shall be personally liable to

its creditors for any indebtedness or liability, and any and all creditors shall look only to the assets of the Corporation for payment.

Section 8 -- Veto Powers

Any decision of the Board of Directors may be vetoed by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of those eligible and voting during a regular or special meeting of the membership (See Article IV) or through electronic referendum.

Article IV -- MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1 -- Annual Meetings

General membership meetings shall be held annually with a written notice of time and place of meeting to be given at least sixty (60) days prior to the meetings. They shall be held for purposes of providing professional development of the membership, conducting the necessary business of the Corporation and providing a forum for the exchange of information among members and the general public on or about interpretation and transliteration.

Section 2 -- Special Meetings

Special Membership Meetings may be called at any time by the Board of Directors, or by written petition of not fewer than ten (10) voting members of the Corporation, sent to the Board of Directors. Written notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the meetings.

Section 3 -- Minutes of Meetings of Members

Minutes of all meetings of Members shall be prepared in a timely manner by the Secretary. A committee shall be appointed by the President and approved by the Board of Directors to approve the minutes of these meetings within sixty (60) days of the conclusion of the meeting.

Section 4 -- Voting

All voting at any regular or special meeting of members shall be by show of hands, unless a secret ballot is called for. All contested elections shall be by secret ballot .

Section 5 -- Quorum

A quorum to conduct business at any annual or special meeting shall consist of a majority of the voting membership registered to attend the meeting.

Article V -- ELECTRONIC REFERENDUM

Motions may be voted on by the membership by electronic voting in the following manner:

- A. Referenda may be drafted and submitted by the Board of Directors, by a committee at the request of the Board of Directors, or by written petition of at least 5 percent (5%) of the voting members of the Corporation, and sent to the Board of Directors.
- B. Written notice of the referendum, stating and describing all motions, procedures and deadlines for voting, shall be emailed to all voting members at least sixty (60) days prior to the referendum deadline.
- C. Results of all referenda shall be determined by a majority of the valid ballots received except when a higher percentage is required by these Bylaws or by *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*.

- D. Results of referenda shall be disseminated to the membership via email and posted on the Corporation website.

Article VI -- BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 -- Number of Directors

The number of Directors shall be fourteen (14) unless and until the number of Directors is changed by amendment to these Bylaws.

Section 2 -- Composition of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be comprised of the following:

- A. Voting Members
 - a. Executive Officers
 - i. President
 - ii. Vice-President of Internal Affairs
 - iii. Vice-President of External Affairs
 - iv. Secretary
 - v. Treasurer
 - vi. Member-At-Large
 - vii. Deaf Member-At-Large
 - b. Region Representatives
 - i. North
 - ii. South
 - iii. East
 - iv. West
- B. Non-Voting Members
 - a. FRID Past President
 - b. Florida Association of the Deaf Representative
 - c. Student Representative

Section 3 -- Powers

All corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of the Board of Directors. Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or in any amount. All charges, responsibilities and membership directives shall persist until fulfilled, regardless of any changes to the makeup of the Board of Directors.

Section 4 -- Duties

- A. Board of Directors
 - 1. To perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by law, by these Bylaws or by the mandate and direction of the voting membership of this Corporation.
 - 2. To adopt, and make a corporate seal, corporate logo and to prescribe the forms of members' certificates/credentials, and membership cards.
 - 3. To approve a budget annually.
- B. Board of Directors
 - 1. President

- a. The President shall have general supervision and direction of the business and affairs of the Corporation. The President shall preside at all meetings of the members and/or directors and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - b. The President shall appoint such committees as may be provided for in the Bylaws following the appointment procedures of the Corporation and may create such other committees as may be mandated by the membership or may be deemed necessary in promoting the purposes of the Corporation.
 - c. The President shall share with the Treasurer and the Secretary the right to sign checks and warrants for withdrawal of corporate funds.
 - d. The President shall represent the Corporation in all activities except those expressly prohibited by law or by these Bylaws.
 - e. The President shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - f. The President shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, except to the Nominations Committee, as determined by the Board.
2. Vice-President of Internal Affairs
- a. In the absence or inability of the President to perform the duties of the office, the Vice-President of Internal Affairs shall perform all duties of the President.
 - b. The Vice-President of Internal Affairs shall supervise the Credentials Committee process for the annual and other membership meetings.
 - c. The Vice-President of Internal Affairs shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - d. The Vice-President of Internal Affairs shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - e. The Vice-President of Internal Affairs shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
3. Vice-President of External Affairs
- a. In the absence or inability of the President or Vice-President of Internal Affairs to perform the duties of the office, the Vice-President of External Affairs shall perform all duties of the President.
 - b. The Vice-President of External Affairs shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors, the members or these Bylaws.
 - c. The Vice-President of External Affairs shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - d. The Vice-President of External Affairs shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
4. Secretary
- a. The Secretary shall keep a full and accurate record of all meetings of the Board of Directors and the organization's members. Minutes of all meetings shall be submitted to the Board of Directors prior to the following Board of Directors meeting for approval.

- b. The Secretary shall keep the seal of the Corporation and affix it to such papers and instruments as may be required in the regular course of business.
 - c. The Secretary shall make service of such notices as may be necessary or proper.
 - d. The Secretary shall have such other powers to perform such other duties as may be prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - e. The Secretary shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - f. The Secretary shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
5. Treasurer
- a. The Treasurer shall supervise the receipt and safekeeping of all funds of the Corporation and deposits that may be designated by the Board of Directors.
 - b. The Treasurer shall make financial reports for each Board meeting.
 - c. The Treasurer shall prepare an annual report, no later than thirty (30) days after the close of the Corporation fiscal year. Two (2) Directors shall audit the annual report. The Treasurer shall have the annual report prepared electronically and distributed prior to the Annual Business Meeting.
 - d. The Treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - e. The Treasurer shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - f. The Treasurer shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
6. Member-At-Large
- a. The Member-At-Large shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - b. The Member-At-Large shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - c. The Member-At-Large shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
7. Deaf Member-At-Large
- a. The Deaf Member-At-Large shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
 - b. The Deaf Member-At-Large shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - c. The Deaf Member-At-Large shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
8. Region Representative – North
- a. The Region Representative – North shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
 - b. The Region Representative – North shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
9. Region Representative – South
- a. The Region Representative – South shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.

- b. The Region Representative – South shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
- 10. Region Representative – East
 - a. The Region Representative – East shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
 - b. The Region Representative – East shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
- 11. Region Representative – West
 - a. The Region Representative –West shall serve as a committee liaison and/or member, as determined by the Board.
 - b. The Region Representative – West shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.
- 12. Florida Association of the Deaf (FAD) Representative
 - a. The Florida Association of the Deaf Representative shall be a communication link between the Corporation and the FAD.
 - b. The Florida Association of the Deaf Representative shall be appointed by the FAD Board.
 - c. The Florida Association of the Deaf Representative shall serve a term specified by FAD or until a successor is appointed.
 - d. The Florida Association of the Deaf Representative shall perform duties as assigned by the Board of Directors or the President of the Corporation.
- 13. Student Representative
 - a. The Student Representative shall be a communication link between the Corporation and students of the profession.
 - b. The Student Representative shall perform duties as assigned by the Board of Directors or the President of the Corporation.
 - c. The Student Representative shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 14. Past President
 - A. The Past President may serve ex officio as a non-voting member of the Board of Directors for one term immediately following their term of office, if the Past President so chooses.
 - B. The Past President shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the members, or these Bylaws.

Section 5 -- Terms of Office

- A. Executive Officers and Region Representatives
 - a. Terms of office shall be two (2) years.
 - b. Terms of office shall commence on January 1 and terminate on December 31 of the respective years.
 - c. Term Limits - Executive Officers and Region Representatives shall hold the same office for no more than two (2) consecutive terms, unless no qualified successor is elected for

- the vacated position.
- B. Florida Association of the Deaf Representative
 - a. Term of office shall be specified by the FAD and selected representative may serve until a successor is appointed.
 - b. Term of office shall commence and terminate at such times determined by the FAD.
- C. Student Representative
 - a. Term of office shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
 - b. Term of office shall commence and terminate at such times determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
- D. Past President
 - a. Term of office may be for one (1) term immediately following their term as President.
 - b. Term of office shall commence on January 1 and terminate on December 31 of the respective years.

Section 6 - Qualifications

- A. Directors shall not concurrently serve as an elected officer on the Board of any other Affiliate Chapter of RID nor on the National RID Board.
- B. All members of the Board of Directors shall be members in good standing of the Corporation and the RID.
- C. All members of the Board of Directors shall be Florida residents.
- D. Executive Officers
 - a. All candidates shall have been voting members in good standing of the Corporation or another Affiliate Chapter of the RID for at least one (1) year immediately prior to candidacy.
 - b. All candidates must maintain valid certification from the Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf, Inc.
- E. Region Representatives
 - a. All candidates shall have been voting members in good standing of the Corporation or another state affiliate chapter of the RID for at least one (1) year immediately prior to candidacy. The Board of Directors can waive this requirement at their discretion.
 - b. Candidates shall be residents of their respective regions at the time of their candidacy.
- F. Florida Association of the Deaf Representative
 - a. The representative shall be exempted from the requirement of being a member in good standing of the Corporation and the RID.
- G. Student Representative
 - a. All candidates shall be voting student members in good standing of the Corporation at the time of their candidacy.

Section 7 - Nominations & Elections

Procedures governing nominations, acceptance of nominations, and elections are contained in the Policies and Procedures Manual.

Section 8 - Vacancies

Vacancies of the Board of Directors are created upon the death, resignation or disqualification of any Director or the removal of a Director for cause.

- A. Removal of Directors for Cause: The Board of Directors, at a properly noticed Review Hearing,

may declare vacant any office for which the Director has failed to attend three (3) consecutive, regular Board meetings or for which the Director has been removed for cause as detailed in *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*.

- B. **Review Hearing:** A hearing by the Board of Directors to determine cause and removal of a Board member may be initiated by either a three-quarters (3/4) majority vote of the Board of Directors at any meeting for which proper notice has been given, exclusive of the Board member facing removal, or a written request from no fewer than ten (10) voting members submitted to the Board of Directors.
- C. **Appointment to Fill a Vacancy:** Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by appointment of the Board. The appointment will continue for the unexpired portion of the term, if that is less than one year. If the unexpired portion of the term has more than one year remaining, the appointment will continue until the next election, at which time the position will be listed in the slate of open positions.

Section 9 - Meetings of Directors & Notice of Meetings

- A. **Annual Meetings:** Annual meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately before and/or after, and at the same place as the Annual Meeting of Members. These meetings may be held without notice.
- B. **Regular Meetings:** Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least on a quarterly basis at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Such meetings are open to the public. Written notice of these meetings shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.
- C. **Special Meetings:** These may be called by the President or by any three (3) Officers. Written notice of these meetings shall be given at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.
- D. **Meetings by Electronic Conference:** Any regular or special meeting may be held by electronic conference or similar communication equipment, so long as all Directors are able to actively participate in the meeting.

Section 10 - Quorum

A quorum to conduct business at meetings of the Board of Directors shall be a majority of its members.

Article VII -- EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 1 - Composition

The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the President, the Vice-President of Internal Affairs, the Vice-President of External Affairs, the Secretary, the Treasurer, the Member-At-Large, and the Deaf Member-At-Large.

Section 2 - Responsibilities

The Executive Committee shall be responsible for preparing the agenda prior to meetings of the Board of Directors.

Section 3 - Authority

In the event that the Board is unable to convene, the Executive Committee shall be given full power and authority to take action on emergency issues.

Section 4 - Quorum

A quorum shall be a majority of the members of the Executive Committee.

Section 5 - Alternative Meeting Methods

The Executive Committee may meet by telephone or other electronic methods.

Article VIII -- COMMITTEES

Upon the Board of Directors' approval, the President shall appoint all committees, including standing, special and/ or ad hoc committees. All committees shall be composed of at least three (3) voting members in good standing to serve for a specified term. Any vacancies in the membership of any committee that are filled will follow the same procedure. Furthermore, for each committee, the President shall designate a member of the Board of Directors to serve as a non-voting member. A majority of the committee shall constitute a quorum.

Article IX -- ADVISORY COUNCIL

The Board of Directors may, by a majority vote of Directors, designate professionals from various areas of interest and concern to the profession of interpreting, and the Corporation, to serve as members of an Advisory Council. The Board may assign to an Advisory Council such duties as may be appropriate, so long as duties are not in conflict with these Bylaws.

Article X -- EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS

Section 1 - Execution of Instruments

Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or in any amount. All charges, responsibilities, and membership directives shall persist until fulfilled regardless of any changes to the makeup of the Board of Directors.

Section 2 - Promissory Notes

In order to authorize the signing of any promissory note, the Board of Directors must cast a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote for approval of such authorization.

Section 3 - Indebtedness

Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board of Directors, or as otherwise required by law, checks, drafts, orders for payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation, shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President or such other Director as may be designated by the President as authorized to sign.

Section 4 - Deposits

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited in a timely manner to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may designate.

Section 5 - Gifts

The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or device for the nonprofit or public purpose of the Corporation.

Article XI-- INSPECTION RIGHTS AND CORPORATE SEAL

The Corporation's Bylaws as amended to date shall be open to inspection by the members of the Corporation. Inspection can also be made of the books, membership records, or minutes of proceedings of the members or of the Board or committees of the Board, upon written request to the Corporation by the members and with a ten (10) business days notice for a purpose reasonably related to such person's interests as a member. Any inspection may be made in person or by an agent or attorney, and the right to inspection includes the right to receive copies and/or extracts at reasonable cost. The Corporation logo shall be used by the Corporation for official and/or approved purposes only. The corporate logo may not be used by an individual member for her/his personal use.

Article XII -- FISCAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATION

The Fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first (1st) day of July, and end on the thirtieth (30th) day of June each year.

Article XIII -- FEES, DUES AND ASSESSMENTS

In order to remain in good standing, a member must pay annual dues in advance of the due date, in amounts to be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall not increase or decrease membership dues by more than ten percent (10%) in one dollar increments that may not exceed five dollars without a majority vote of the membership either at the Annual Meeting or by mail referendum. The dues shall be equal for each member in a category, but different dues may be set for each category. Notification of any changes in dues structure, fees, or assessments must be posted on the Corporation website and sent to the members via email at least ninety (90) days prior to the anticipated implementation. Furthermore, the Board of Directors may determine and assign the payment of a reasonable late fee and reinstatement fee and establish dues structures for any category without a dues structure.

Article XIV -- AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

The Bylaws may be amended or repealed by approval of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Corporation, eligible and voting during a regular or special meeting of the membership with sixty (60) days prior notice or by following the guidelines in Article V - Electronic Referendum with a quorum of not fewer than ten percent (10%) of the voting members. However, any amendment which would materially and adversely affect the rights of a specific category of members must be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the members voting from that affected category. In any transition period, the Board of Directors shall, by a majority vote of the Directors, prescribe the necessary mechanisms for implementing any changes resulting from amendments to the Bylaws.

Article XV - PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* shall govern the Corporation in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws or any special rules of order the Corporation may adopt.

Article XVI -- NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

The Corporation shall not discriminate in matters of membership or activities hosted by the Corporation on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, ethnicity, hearing status, national origin, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression.

Article XVII -- DISSOLUTION OF THE CORPORATION

Upon dissolution of this Corporation, its assets remaining after payment of, or provisions for payment of, all debts and liabilities of this Corporation shall be distributed to a non-profit fund, foundation, or corporation that is organized and operated exclusively for educational purposes which has established its tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. Preference shall be given to organizations with a similar mission and purpose to that of the Corporation.